
 

 
 

Health and Wellbeing Board 
 
Date: Wednesday, 30 March 2022 
Time: 2.00 pm 
Venue: A link to the meeting can be found on the front page of the agenda. 
 

Members (Quorum: 5)  

Rebecca Knox (Chairman), Forbes Watson (Vice-Chairman), Vivienne Broadhurst, 
Scott Chilton, Sam Crowe, Marc House, Spencer Flower, Tim Goodson, Margaret Guy, 

Nicholas Johnson, Theresa Leavy, Martin Longley, Patricia Miller, John Sellgren, 
Peter Wharf, Simon Wraw and Simone Yule 

 
Chief Executive: Matt Prosser, County Hall, Dorchester, Dorset DT1 1XJ  

 

For more information about this agenda please contact Democratic Services  
Meeting Contact  01305 224185 - george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk 

 
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting, apart from any items listed in 
the exempt part of this agenda. The meeting can be watched live by using this link: 

https://youtu.be/e7gC7eCbmyw  
 

For easy access to all the council’s committee agendas and minutes download the free 
public app called Modern.Gov for use on any iPad, Android, and Windows tablet.  Once 
downloaded select Dorset Council. 

 
 

 

Agenda 
 

Item  Pages 
 

1.   APOLOGIES 

 
 

 To receive any apologies for absence. 

 

 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

 

 

 To disclose any pecuniary, other registrable or non-registrable interest 
as set out in the adopted Code of Conduct. In making their disclosure 

councillors are asked to state the agenda item, the nature of the 
interest and any action they propose to take as part of their declaration.  

 
If required, further advice should be sought from the Monitoring Officer 
in advance of the meeting. 

 

 

Public Document Pack

https://youtu.be/e7gC7eCbmyw


 

3.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

 
 

 To receive questions or statements on the business of the committee 

from town and parish councils and members of the public. 
  

Members of the public who live, work or represent an organisation 
within the Dorset Council area, may submit up to two questions or a 
statement of up to a maximum of 450 words.  All submissions must be 

sent electronically to george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by the 
deadline set out below.  When submitting a question please indicate 

who the question is for and include your name, address and contact 
details.  Questions and statements received in line with the council’s 
rules for public participation will be published as a supplement to the 

agenda. 
  

Questions will be read out by an officer of the council and a response 
given by the appropriate Portfolio Holder or officer at the meeting.  All 
questions, statements and responses will be published in full within the 

minutes of the meeting.  
  
The deadline for submission of the full text of a question or 
statement is 8.30am on Friday, 25 March 2022. 
  

Please refer to the guide to public participation at committee meetings 
for more information about speaking at meetings. 

 

 

4.   COUNCILLOR QUESTIONS 

 
 

 To receive questions submitted by councillors.   
  

Councillors can submit up to two valid questions at each meeting and 
sub divided questions count towards this total.   Questions and 
statements received will be published as a supplement to the agenda 

and all questions, statements and responses will be published in full 
within the minutes of the meeting.  
  

The submissions must be emailed in full to 
george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk by 8.30am on Friday, 25 March 
2022.   
  
Dorset Council Constitution – Procedure Rule 13  

 

 

5.   LOCAL OUTBREAK MANAGEMENT PLAN 

 
 

 To receive a verbal update from the Director of Public Health on the 
current position and ensure the Board is able to fulfil its role in 
accordance with the Plan. 

 

 

6.   PHARMACEUTICAL NEEDS ASSESSMENT 

 

 

 To receive a verbal update from the Consultant in Public Health. 
 

 

mailto:george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/s23499/Participation%20at%20Committees.pdf
mailto:george.dare@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/ieListMeetings.aspx?CId=433&Year=0&info=1&MD=constitution


 

7.   ICS UPDATE AND DISCUSSION: ICP STRATEGY AND PLACE-
BASED PARTNERSHIPS 

 

 

 To receive an update from the Director of Public Health and the 
Executive Director of Place on the development of the ICS and the role 

of the Health and Wellbeing Board. 
 

 

8.   HWB STRATEGY ACTION PLAN STOCKTAKE AND NEXT STEPS 

 

 

 To receive a presentation from the Consultant in Public Health. 

 

 

9.   ANCHOR INSTITUTIONS UPDATE 

 
 

 To receive a brief update from the Consultant in Public Health. 
 

 

10.   BETTER CARE FUND 

 
5 - 30 

 To receive a report by the Strategic Commissioning Lead, Adult 

Commissioning. 
 

 

11.   FORWARD PLAN 

 
31 - 34 

 To consider the Forward Plan for the Board. 

 

 

12.   URGENT ITEMS 

 

 

 To consider any items of business which the Chairman has had prior 
notification and considers to be urgent pursuant to section 100B (4) b) 

of the Local Government Act 1972. The reason for the urgency shall be 
recorded in the minutes. 

 

 

13.   EXEMPT BUSINESS 

 
 

 To move the exclusion of the press and the public for the following item 
in view of the likely disclosure of exempt information within the 

meaning of paragraph 3 of schedule 12 A to the Local Government Act 
1972 (as amended).  

The public and the press will be asked to leave the meeting whilst the 
item of business is considered. 

 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board 
Better Care Fund – Finance and Performance 
Report 
30 March 2022 
 

For Review and Consultation  

Portfolio Holder:  Cllr P Wharf, Corporate Development and Change  

 
Local Councillor(s): All 

Executive Director: V Broadhurst, Interim Executive Director of People - Adults  

     

Report Author:   Sarah Sewell 
Title: Strategic Commissioning Lead, Adult Commissioning  

Tel: 01305  221256 
Email: sarah.sewell@dorsetcounci l.gov.uk;  
 
Report Status:  Public 

Recommendation: 

 
1. To review the contents of report and confirm this contains the level of 

detail the Board require.  

2. To identify specific measures in addition to those set out, which will help 

demonstrate improved outcomes for Dorset. 

Reason for Recommendation:      

On 12th January 2022, the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB) retrospectively 

approved the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan for 2021/22, which has subsequently 
been approved by NHS England (NHSE).   

 
Officers committed to providing an update report on progress of BCF funded 

services and performance against metrics in March and November 2022. The 

appended report ‘Better Care Fund Dorset - Performance & Finance Update 

Report’ also highlights how the BCF supports and is aligned to the priorities of 

the Health and Wellbeing Strategy.  

1. Executive Summary  

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 10

mailto:sarah.sewell@dorsetcouncil.gov.uk


1.1 The BCF and iBCF provides Dorset with a total pooled budget of 
£136,827,560.    

 
1.2 NHSE set national conditions that each annual BCF plan must meet, some 

are financial: 
 

 a minimum total investment for the plan from the CCG 

 inflation uplift for the CCG’s contribution 

 which grants must be included – i.e. Disabled Facilities Grant.   

 investment in NHS community services to help people manage their 

health conditions at home. 

 

1.3 Some of the conditions relate to mandatory performance outcomes that 
must be covered: 

 

 improved outcomes for those being discharged from hospital 

 improved outcomes for those managing health conditions at home 

 

1.4 Appendix A shares Dorset’s performance against the set metrics up to 
Quarter 3 of 2021/22: 

 
i) Effectiveness of reablement  

ii) Discharge to normal place of residence 

iii) Avoidable Admissions 

iv) Older adults whose long-term care needs are met by admission to 

residential or nursing care per 100,000 population 

 

1.5 In addition it sets out, performance and contract activity of key funding 
streams, such as Disabled Facilities Grants, improving outcomes of people 

being discharged from hospital and Carers Services.  Where the information 
is available at a local level this has been captured in the report.   

 
1.6 There are key links between the purpose of the BCF and the priorities of the 

Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) Strategy.  The report highlights the links 

and provides examples of how BCF funded services and outcomes are 
supporting the HWB priorities.   

 
2. Financial Implications 

 

The Council and Dorset NHS CCG are required to work within the financial 
envelope and to Plan, hence continuous monitoring is required. Joint 

commissioning activity and close working with System partners, including acute 
trusts, allow these funds to be invested to support collective priorities for Dorset.  
The Joint Commissioning Group of the Council and the CCG will monitor budget 

Page 6



and activity.   
 

 
 
3. Well-being and Health Implications  

 
Allocation of the BCF and iBCF supports individuals with health and social care 

needs, as well as enabling preventative measures, supporting early intervention 
and promoting independence.    

 
Dorset, like many other areas across the South West and nationally, is 
experiencing many challenges in providing and supporting the delivery of health 

and social care.   
 

One of the highest risks for Dorset is the challenge brought about by lack of 
available home care and therapy. The lack of availability of these two services is 
concerning, not only because it will impact on outcomes of those being 

discharged from hospital, and in turn, Dorset’s performance against metrics for 
residential admissions and reablement, but also because people are not always 

able to stay at home and leave their community.  However, as detailed in the 
report some areas of performance are above and meeting Plan respectively, 
albeit there is both opportunity and intent to make further improvements. 

 
As a Dorset system, joint work continues to address these pressures, but Dorset 

like other areas, has a challenged workforce with staff shortages which are 
brought about for a variety of reasons.    
 

   
4. Climate implications 

 

All partner agencies are mindful in their strategic and operational planning of the 
commitments, which they have taken on to address the impact of climate 

change.  
 
5. Other Implications 

 
Covid-19 continues to present a risk to the available workforce, and therefore 

availability of health and social care resources.   
 

Dorset Council and Dorset NHS CCG officers will be required to prioritise focus 
to supporting Government led initiatives to protect local NHS services.  As will 
actions to support and progress new Government guidance as we embark on a 

new phase of Covid-19 Response; Living with Covid1.   
 

6. Risk Assessment 

                                                                 
1 COVID-19 Response: Living with COVID-19 - GOV.UK (www.gov.uk) 

Page 7

https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/covid-19-response-living-with-covid-19/covid-19-response-living-with-covid-19


 
Dorset Council and Dorset NHS CCG officers are confident the BCF and iBCF 

plans provide appropriate assurance and confirm spending is complaint with 
conditions. 

 
The funds provide mitigation of risks by securing continuation of essential service 
provision and provides preventative measures to reduce, delay and avoid 

demand.   
 

There is currently a high demand for health and social care, with some 
individuals waiting for services.  However, cases are managed on a risk basis to 
protect individuals deemed to be in high-risk situations, from being without care.   

 
The Council has allocated all national Government funds to providers, particularly 

focussing on around workforce recruitment and retention.  
 
7. Equalities Impact Assessment 

 

It is important that all partners ensure that the individual needs and rights of 

every person accessing health and social care services are respected, including 
people with protected characteristics so the requirements of the Equalities Act 
2010 are met by all partners. 
 
8. Appendices 

 

A:  Better Care Fund Dorset - Performance & Finance Update Report  

 

9. Background Papers 

 

Papers presented to HWB 12th January 2022: 
(Public Pack)Agenda Document for Health and Wellbeing Board, 12/01/2022 14:00 
(dorsetcouncil.gov.uk) 

 
Better Care Fund Planning Requirements 2021-22: 
B0898-300921-Better-Care-Fund-Planning-Requirements.pdf (england.nhs.uk) 

Page 8

https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5275/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Jan-2022%2014.00%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://moderngov.dorsetcouncil.gov.uk/documents/g5275/Public%20reports%20pack%2012th-Jan-2022%2014.00%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Board.pdf?T=10
https://www.england.nhs.uk/wp-content/uploads/2021/09/B0898-300921-Better-Care-Fund-Planning-Requirements.pdf


   
 

Better Care Fund Dorset 

Performance & Finance Update Report  

Health & Wellbeing Board 30th March 2022 

1. Introduction 

1. 1 The Better Care Fund provides Dorset Council and Dorset CCG with a total 

shared annual funding stream of £136,827,560.  This is made up of the following: 

Funding Source Amount 

Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG)1 £4,152,450 

CCG minimum contribution2 £29,709,110 

iBCF3 £12,084,516 

Additional from Local Authority4 £57,990,500 

Additional from CCG5 £32,890,984 

Total £136,827,560 

 

1.2 On 12th January 2022, the Health & Wellbeing Board (HWB) retrospectively 

approved the Better Care Fund Plan for 2021/22, which has subsequently been 

approved by NHS England (NHSE).   

1.3 The reporting templates from NHSE require local areas to report funding 

allocations into standardised ‘Schemes’, examples include; Maintaining 

Independence, Supported Hospital Discharge, Moving on from Hospital Living and 

Integrated Health and Social Care Locality Teams. 

 

1.4 NHSE set national conditions that each annual plan must meet, some are 

financial: 

 a minimum total investment for the plan from the CCG 

 inflation uplift for the CCG’s contribution 

 which grants must be included – i.e. Disabled Facilities Grant.   

 investment in NHS community services to help people manage their health 

conditions at home. 

1.5 Some of the conditions relate to mandatory performance outcomes that must be 

covered: 

 improved outcomes for those being discharged from hospital 

                                                                 
1 Disabled Facilities Grant (DFG) - a grant provided to disabled individuals to make changes to their homes i.e. 

widen doors, install stairlifts and ramps etc.  
2 CCG Minimum Contribution – this is the minimum amount of funding contribution required. 

3 iBCF - Improved Better Care Fund – the grant is paid via a S31 to Local Authorities to support integration, 
social care and health 
4 Additional Local Authority Contribution – Local authorities contribution to the pooled budget relating to 

integration and social care 
5 Additional CCG Contribution – CCG contribution to the pooled budget relating to integration, social care and 
health 

Page 9



   
 

 improved outcomes for those managing health conditions at home 

1.6 This report shares Dorset’s performance against the set metrics up to Quarter 3 

of 2021/22: 

i) Effectiveness of reablement  

ii) Discharge to normal place of residence 

iii) Avoidable Admissions 

iv) Older adults whose long-term care needs are met by admission to 

residential or nursing care per 100,000 population 

1.7 In addition, performance and contract activity of key funding streams, such as 

Disabled Facilities Grants, improving outcomes of people being discharged from 

hospital and Carers Services is included.  Where the information is available at a 

local level this has been captured in the report, as have links to the HWB Board 

priorities. 

2. Supporting delivery of the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 

 

2.1 There are key links between the purpose of the BCF and the priorities of the 

HWB Strategy, fundamentally both share goals and requirements to work together 

across health, social care and wider partners to improve health and wellbeing 

outcomes for individuals, ensuring services for individuals are delivered closer to 

home.  

  

2.2  A useful summary of the vision for the BCF is shown in the infographic on the 

following page; it shows how the BCF strives to enable co-ordination of health and 

social care services around the individual – a vision that will is hoped resonates with 

the HWB Strategy.   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 10



   
 

 

 

 

 

 

   

 

2.3 In order to clearly show the key links back to the HWB Strategy, the following 

sections align the BCF mandatory conditions, Schemes and other requirements to 

each of the three HWB priorities.  

2.4 HWB Priority - Empowering Communities 

Priority one - engaging with and empowering communities of highest need to 

improve healthy life expectancy 

 

2.4.1 The BCF supports this priority within the mandatory conditions around 

investment in NHS community services to help people manage their health 

conditions at home.  Furthermore, Maintaining Independence BCF funding streams 

that provide the following services and support this priority: 

 Assistive Technology 

 Dorset Accessible Homes (Disabled Facilities Grant) 

 Dorset Integrated Community Equipment Service 

 Moving on from hospital living – support for a Learning Disabilities cohort to 

live in the community 

 Occupational Health support 

 District Nursing Capacity 

 Carers support; Case workers, carers mental health support, respite and 

short breaks, training. 

Moving from:   

“I have to tell my story multiple times to different 
people” 

“I’m left w aiting for services whilst commissioners 

argue over w ho pays” 

“I don’t get a say in my treatment” 

“When I’m discharged from a service, I’m not sure 

w here to go next” 

Moving to:   

“I completed an integrated care plan, setting out w ho 
w ill provide care and support to me and w hen” 

“I receive more care in or near my home, and haven’t 

been to hospital for ages” 

“I feel fully supported to manage my ow n conditions 

and live independently” 

 

 

Page 11



   
 

Integrated working of locality-based health and social care teams e.g. Locality 

Cluster Teams delivers localised services to support to communities closer to home. 

2.5 HWB Priority - Promoting healthy lives  

 

Priority two - set priorities to accelerate work promoting healthy lives and 

wellbeing 

2.5.1 Some of the examples above also meet this priority.  However, the following 

services support the mandatory BCF condition to improve outcomes for those being 

discharged from hospital which supports promotion of healthy lives:   

 Reablement Services 

 Integrated Crisis and Rapid Response services 

 Mental Health and dementia support 

In addition, funding streams support domiciliary packages and residential 

placements, ensuring individuals live safely and as independently as possible in their 

local community.   

 

2.6 HWB Priority - Support and challenge 

Priority three - provide governance and support to our partners, prioritising 

the delivery of key partnership outcomes 

2.6.1 The BCF sets a statutory requirement to integrate some areas of health and 

social care.  For example, the Integrated Community Equipment Service is a true 

pooled budget with contributions from Dorset Council, Dorset CCG and BCP 

Council.  The service is delivered by one provider, Nottingham Rebab Supplies Ltd 

(NRS),  and can be accessed by both Health and Social Care professionals and 

Teams.  This is a key enabler to support people to remain at home. Council and 

CCG Commissioners work together to commission and contract manage this 

service. 

2.6.2 The Dorset Accessible Homes Service, funded through Disabled Facilities 

Grant element of the BCF, is also delivered by Millbrook Healthcare ltd and again 

can be accessed by both Health and Social Care professional and Teams for minor 

works and social care for Major adaptations. 

2.6.3 Furthermore, the membership arrangements of the HWB offers an excellent 

enabling opportunity to develop more joint commissioning approaches already being 

developed by both the Joint Commissioning Board and the Learning Disability and 

Autism Joint Commissioning Board. 

3. Dorset’s Performance against Better Care Fund Metrics Performance 

 
3.1 Potentially Avoidable Hospital Admissions – CCG led metric 

 
3.1.1 One of the new metrics introduced this year is unplanned hospitalisation for 

chronic ambulatory care sensitive conditions. Ambulatory care sensitive conditions 

Page 12



   
 

(ACSCs) are conditions where effective community person-centred care can help 
prevent the need for hospital admission. This indicator indicates how successfully 

the health & care system manages long-term (LTCs) or chronic conditions (such as 
asthma, diabetes, epilepsy, hypertensive disease, dementia and heart failure) where 

optimum management can be achieved in the community.  
 

During the initial waves of COVID, people were less likely to consult medical 

services and, with continued pressure on primary care services potentially impacting 

also on the management of chronic conditions, we thought it was reasonable to enter 

the same indirect standardised rate (ISR) as 2019/20 for both 2020/21 and 2021/22. 

 

 

 
The metric is age and sex standardised, which happens at a national level. We can 

therefore not replicate this locally.  It is also only undertaken annually and so we are 

currently unable to report against this metric on a quarterly basis.  

We have, however, produced a report that shows actual ACSCs discharge numbers 

which provides us with a trend over time, as you will see below. We have broken this 

down to locality areas within Dorset. 

 

 

 

Note that the nationally produced data is only available for 2019/20 at HWB level and 

the indicator value is the indirectly standardised rate (ISR) of admissions per 

100,000 population. The data for the most recent three months will be subject to 

change when the local data is refreshed.  This is largely due to the clinical coding 

issues at Dorset County Hospital. 

 
 

2020-2021 
Actual 

2021-22 
Plan 

595.4 595.4 

Page 13



   
 

3.2 Length of Stay – CCG led metric 

 

3.2.1 The metric used reports on the percentage of in-patients, resident in the Dorset 

HWB catchment area, who have been an in-patient in an acute hospital for  

i) 14 days or more, and 

ii) 21 days or more, as a percentage of all in-patients. 

3.2.2 A national dataset is available, however, as there is a time delay, locally 

validated data has been used for monitoring purposes. For both subset groups, we 

have also looked at a more granular/locality level and provided, in addition to the 

percentage graph, the comparative numbers. 

All graphs shown below show a trend over time and, as you will see, correlate to the 

first wave of the Covid-19 pandemic and the change in NHS policy to release 

capacity in our hospitals. 

The variation at the local level will be multi-factorial and would require further in-

depth analysis and, even then, will likely be difficult to determine direct cause and 

effect. 

  

 

 

 

3.2.3 Please note that the stays of fourteen plus days will include those staying 

twenty-one or more days. In order to enable examination at this geographical level 

the data has been prepared locally and therefore will not provide an exact match to 

Page 14



   
 

the nationally supplied trend data.  The data for the most recent month may also be 

subject to change when the data is refreshed. 

 

 

 

 

 

  

21-22  
Q3 

Plan 

21-22  
Q4 

Plan 

End of 
Q3 

1 Oct 

2022 

As at 
Dec 2022 

Proportion of inpatients 
resident for 14 days or 

more 10.8% 10.8% 

 
11.9% 

 
14% 

Proportion of inpatients 
resident for 21 days or 

more 5.7% 5.7% 

 
6.3% 

 
8.4% 

 

3.2.4 Working as a local system, greater integrated and partnership working is 

enabling people to leave hospital to go home more quickly in their recovery period.  

Examples include, our focussing of BCF funded Reablement Services into short-term 

interventions to support people to be at home, also closer integrated working in 

Cluster Teams at a local level to support and plan initial and longer term care and 

support.   

Page 15



   
 

3.2.5 The CCG with agreement from ‘system partners’ have commissioned, via HDP 

funding, significant blocked home care hour contracts in order to guarantee 

resources to support pathways home.  Furthermore, BCF scheme maintaining 

independence has continued the roll out at assistive technology and the use of 

community equipment to aid discharge and promote re-gaining and maintaining of 

independence, reducing risks of re-admissions.    

3.2.5 Our Plan targets were set on an average of the April-August 2021 national 

dataset, on the basis that previous lengths of stay showed an upward trend.  As you 

will see from our local information, we are above both targets. Dorset ICS is facing 

significant challenges in relation to availability of care due to workforce shortages, 

particularly care at home, which is causing delays to discharge. However, there is 

joint commitment to continue to work together to seek improvements and solutions. 

 
3.3 Discharge to normal place of residence – CCG led metric 

 
3.3.1 This metric records the percentage of people, resident in the Council’s HWB 

catchment area, who are discharged from an acute hospital to their normal place of 
residence. 
 

3.3.2 Note that usual place of residence can include accommodation such as a 
nursing home if that is appropriate. As illustrated for the two metrics above, the two 

graphs below have been prepared using local data and therefore will not provide an 
exact match to the nationally supplied trend data.  The data for the most recent 
month may also be subject to change when the data is refreshed. 

 
Planned Target 

      

21-22 
Plan 

Percentage of people, resident in the HWB, who are discharged from 
acute hospital to their normal place of residence 

 
(SUS data - available on the Better Care Exchange) 

91.6% 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



   
 

 

 

 

At the end of Quarter 3, the percentage recorded 1 October was 91.15%. 

3.4 Residential Admissions – Council led metric 

 

3.4.1 This measures the long term support needs of older people (65 years+) met by 

admission to a care home, per 100,000.   

 

3.4.2 Investment from the BCF into Care Home placements includes a minimum 

CCG contribution of £2,158,317, Improved Better Care Fund contribution of 

£4,155,848 and additional Local Authority contribution of £55,058,800.  A total of 

£61,372,965. 

 

3.4.3 The lower the rate of admission the better our performance as people are able 

to remain at home and independent for longer. In the following table the annual rate 

and numerator are calculated for a whole year.  

 

 

 

 

 

Page 17



   
 

 2019-2020 
Actual 

2020-2021 
Actual 

2021-2022  
Plan 

Qtr 3 2021-
2022 Actual 

Annual Rate6 491 460 429 396 

Numerator7 540 514 488 443 

South West 

Annual Rate 

519 455   

England 
Annual Rate  

584 498   

CIPFA / 

nearest 
neighbour 

576 4878    

 

3.4.4 In 2020-21, Dorset ranked 69 for this indicator. In the South West, the 

rankings ranged from 26 (BCP) to 150 (Isles of Scilly) with the annual rate 

ranging from 327 to 2107 per 100,000 population aged 65+. In the CIPFA / 

nearest neighbour group, the rankings ranged from 25 (Central Bedfordshire) to 

148 (Stockport) with the annual rate ranging from 321 to 1368. 

 

3.4.5 As of Quarter 3 of 2021/22, performance is currently better than planned.  

Dorset’s annual rate is 396 per 100,000 population, numerator, as a count of all 

permanent admissions, is 443. 

                                                                 
6 Annual Rate – takes the data for each locality and scales it to show the number of admissions out of a 
population of 100,000. This makes the rate comparable for each of the localities 
7 Numerator –in this example, the number of people aged 65+ who became permanent residents in a care 

home in the year to 31/12/2021. The denominator, for this example, is the 65+ population of Dorset  
8 CIPFA nearest neighbour average calculated to minimise the impact of outlier result from Stockport by using 
England average as a proxy for the Stockport annual rate 

0.0

100.0

200.0

300.0

400.0

500.0

600.0

East Dorset North Dorset Purbeck West Dorset Weymouth and
Portland

Long term support needs of older people (65 years+) met by admission 
to a care home, per 100,000 by DC locality for the rolling year to 

31/12/2021

Dorset Council Plan 2021-22

Page 18



   
 

 People in West Dorset and Weymouth and Portland are more likely to need 

and be placed in residential care when compared to the whole Dorset Council 

area.  However, West Dorset remains below the Plan target.   

 Weymouth and Portland have a higher rate of permanent admissions than 

other localities and this is consistent with data for Quarter 1 and 2. This 

warrants further monitoring to fully determine the factors involved; relative 

higher deprivation or other more nuanced influences. 

 Quarter 3 performance is better than all three comparator rates from last year.  

Dorset’s England ranking of 69 sits us toward the bottom of the middle area of 

the performance table.  Given Dorset’s older than average population it is 

unlikely to move to top of the performance table. 

3.4.6 This metric is aligned to a number of the HWB and Adult Social Care strategic 

priorities – Promoting Independence, supporting people to remain independent for as 

long as possible.  In addition, the ethos of Home First has emphasised the already 

established focus to reduce residential admission.  Partnership working to increase 

provision of reablement, therapy and rehabilitation support to promote independence 

is a priority for the Home First Programme in Dorset and will further support 

maintaining achievement of this metric. 

3.4.7 Whilst performance is improving there have been challenges from the ongoing 

pressure and lack of home care provision, like many other areas in the country, 

particularly to maintain discharges from hospital (to reduce infection risks and 

manage the demand for acute hospital beds).  This had led to the increase in the 

need for more interim placements in residential care, whilst ongoing care at home is 

found.  Therefore, performance could have been better still and we strive to improve 

our England ranked position.  Good established working relationships with BCP 

Commissioners offers the opportunity to understand how they have achieved good 

performance. 

3.4.8 Commissioners continue to work closely with the local provider market to 

support workforce growth, ensuring Government funding is allocated in the best way 

to support retention and recruitment into social care.  In addition, pilot schemes, 

funded from iBCF, to further develop the role of Trusted Assessors and embedding 

Strengths Based approaches will further support maintaining of independence. 

3.5 Reablement – Council led metric 

3.5.1 This measures the Proportion of older people (65 years+) who are still at home 

91 days after discharge from hospital into reablement / rehabilitation services. The 

total investment into Reablement through BCF is £3,466,585. 

 2019-2020 
Actual 

2020-21 
Actual 

2021-2022  
Plan 

Qtr 3 2021-
2022 Actual 

Annual Rate 81.2% 78.6% 77% 76.6% 

South West  83.8% 78.2%   

England 82.0% 79.1%   

CIPFA / nearest 

neighbour 

80.8% 76.1%   

Page 19



   
 

 

3.5.2 In 2020-21, Dorset ranked 94 for this indicator. In the South West, the 

rankings ranged from 12 (BCP) to 145 (N Somerset) with the range of results 

from 91.9% to 42.1%, 6 of the 15 South West councils (including Dorset) had 

results between 76.6% and 79.2%. In the CIPFA / nearest neighbour group, the 

rankings ranged from 21 (Stockport) to 145 (N Somerset) with the range of 

results from 89.3% to 42.1%, 6 of the 15 councils had results between 83.2% and 

86.1%.    

 

3.5.3 As of Quarter 3 of 2021/22 performance is currently as planned, with Dorset’s 

average annual rate is 76.6%.  In the localities the annual rate is in the range 74.2% 

(North Dorset) and 79.6% (Weymouth and Portland).  Performance against this 

measure has been monitored closely; there had been concern that we may see 

performance drop due to the changes in Hospital Discharge Policy in 2020, which 

essentially discharged people from hospital much earlier in their recovery, therefore, 

potentially increasing the numbers of re-admissions.  However, the Reablement 

Service are managing and supporting recovery at home, and we will continue close 

monitoring and working with the Provider to seek further improvements. The capacity 

of the service does not however meet the ‘System’ demand. 

3.5.4 Improving performance is a key priority, in order to improve individuals’ 

outcomes and based on comparators there is much to learn from others to support 

this.  At present the Reablement Service does not employ any therapists and this 

would enhance the offer.  In addition, the service is holding a number of vacancies 

as it is unable to recruit in line with wider market workforce challenges. There have 

also been a number of home care provider who have handed back packages as they 

can not provide the workforce; these packages are being partly covered by the 

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

50.00%

60.00%

70.00%

80.00%

90.00%

100.00%

East Dorset North Dorset Purbeck West Dorset Weymouth &
Portland

Proportion of older people (65 years+) who are still at home 91 days 
after discharge from hospital into reablement / rehabilitation services by 

locality for the rolling year to 31/12/2021

Dorset

Page 20



   
 

reablement service until a permanent arrangement is made – this adversely impacts 

on capacity and performance of the reablement service.   

4. Key funding streams and associated performance of Maintaining 

Independence Schemes 

 

4.1 Disabled Facilities Grant 

4.1.2 Disabled Facilities Grants (DFGs) were included in the Better Care Fund 

spending plans from April 2015 and is a statutory function under the Housing 

Regulation Act 1996.  There has been growth in DFG allocations over the life of the 

BCF policy as Government have recognised the important part DFGs can play in 

enabling independent living.    

 

4.1.3 The current budget for the Dorset Accessible Homes Service contract, which is 

commissioned as a complete service, Millbrook Healthcare Ltd for the management 

and delivery of both major and minor Adaptations, is £4.152 million. 

4.1.4 Adaptations, whether minor or major, promote independence and enables 

people to remain in their own homes, a BCF mandatory condition.  In addition, the 

service is improving outcomes for those being discharged from hospital, and helping 

people manage their health conditions at home. 

4.1.5 The infographic on the following page shows the type of installations and 

equipment provided through the Service, both in 2020/21 and first six months of 

2021/22.  Major adaptations activity this year is lower than last, this is due to Covid 

related impacts (eg, lock downs, people not wanting contractors in their homes), and 

Brexit related, building supplies delays – e.g., shower trays due to plastic supplies, 

cost of timber and construction materials.   

4.1.6 Minor adaptations data for first six months of 2021/22 reports higher turnover; 

331 adaptations.  The majority were ramps/half steps and external handrails, and 

this service is accessed by health and social care colleagues to help facilitate 

Hospital discharges, also helping to prevent accidents and enable people to remain 

independent in their own homes.  Additional activity is linked to changes in Hospital 

Discharge Policy and greater pressure on hospitals as more people are being 

discharged early back to their homes. 

4.1.7 There is currently no national benchmarking data.  However, Foundations, 

which is the overarching organisation for Home Improvement Agencies, reports key 

measures around timeframes for completing works – within 26 working weeks, and 

this is a KPI in the contract. This stands at currently 73% which is lower than 

previous years and some of the delays reasons are as follows: Awaiting Planning 

permission, a very long delay due to utility company (gas), Delays with family finding 

funding to top up cost of works and awaiting permission with Registered Providers to 

start the grant process and we have been working specifically with one Housing 

Association to address this.  

Page 21



   
 

   
 

 

 

 

P
age 22



   
 

15 
 

4.2 Integrated Community Equipment Service (ICES) 

4.2.1 Funded by BCF, the ICES for Dorset has a budget of £1.23m.  The contract is 
held by NRS and supplies equipment that ranges from small items such as, toilet 
seat frames, walking frame, commodes, chair risers and bed risers to more complex 

equipment such as hoists, patient turners, hospital beds, pressure reliving equipment 
and riser recliner chairs. 

4.2.2 This is the only CCG, Dorset Council and BCP Council pooled budget, it is 

managed by BCP Council. Like minor adaptions – ICES experiences huge demand 

from hospital discharges coupled with supply chain issues relating to Brexit and 

Suez Canal blockages, which continue to experience some port delays. 

 

4.2.3 The table below reports number of deliveries up to end of December 2021 

(Quarter 3), across localities and into other Council areas. The total 2836 deliveries 

provided 6030 items (there could be multiple deliveries to one person, but it is 

reasonable to assume more than 2500 people have been supported via the service). 

Ordering Team Deliveries 

North Dorset 220 

West Dorset 330 

Purbeck 354 

Weymouth & Portland 402 

East Dorset 375 

Adult Access Team 525 

Education &Children’s Services 284 

Other9 346 

TOTAL 2836 

 

It is key to highlight that the service is supporting prevention.  In addition, many 

deliveries result from contact with Council’s Adult Access Team, who are the first 

point of contact for individuals / public access; this provides swifter support and 

negates the need for referral to the locality team enabling quicker resolution of 

individuals requirements.  

It appears there are more deliveries supporting Weymouth and Portland, a 

community of priority as highlighted in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 

4.2.4 Performance information and associated benchmarking will be provided in the  

November report.  

4.3 Assistive Technology and Equipment 

 

4.3.1 This contract has an annual spend of £538,668.  

4.3.2 This is different from the above equipment as it is supported by live monitoring 

which can trigger a response.  The technology and equipment, which is free at the 

                                                                 
9 This data is being cleansed to allow specific area teams to be identified 

Page 23



   
 

16 
 

point of issue, is installed to support individuals includes 24/7 careline support 

services and linked devices such as, falls detectors/smoke and Carbon Monoxide 

sensors that alert the careline service if help is needed. In addition, GPS tracker and 

falls technology can be linked to the care lines.  These activate if someone falls or 

walks beyond their property or safe zone.  Other devices are classed as standalone 

devices i.e. they link to a pager if the person lives with a family member or has live-in 

carers.  

Some installations are for long term use predominantly the careline and tracker 

technology, and some are for short term to support the individual to recover from a 

period of illness or crisis such as standalone devices to support hospital discharges.  

Health colleagues can access short-term use devices by making referrals. 

4.3.3 There has been a change in contracted provider during Quarter 3 of 2021/22 

with the new contract tendered to bring both cost and working practice efficiencies.  

2020/21 performance delivered by the outgoing provider was 932 installs for Adult 

Social Care and 223 short term referrals.  However, the provider was unable to 

maintain this number of installations within the set contract price, which led to the 

contract termination and re-tender. 

4.3.4 During 2021-22 there have been 439 installations up to the end of February 

2022 and a further 190 devices installed as a short-term intervention.  The reduced 

number of installations is within the financial envelope of the total contract.  The re-

contracting has focused on best value such as delivery and repair costs as well as 

equipment being purchased at cost price direct from the manufacturer. Therefore, 

this significantly improve the number of people who have access to this service in 

the next financial year, also enabling health staff to have direct access to the service. 

4.3.5 The preventative measures and ability to promote independence is a key 

benefit offered by this service. Additional one-off funding has been added to the BCF 

allocation for Assistive Tech in order to support demand, particularly from hospital 

discharges, but there is further work required to reach a more sustainable solution 

for longer term System wide funding.  This would increase the robustness and 

responsiveness of the offer and ultimately improve outcomes and wellbeing for more 

individuals.  

4.3.6 As the new service is developed, we will improve knowledge and awareness of 

how other areas are utilising Technology and Equipment so as to share learning and 

make enhancements where possible. 

5. Key funding streams and associated performance of Carers funded BCF 

Schemes  

 

5.1 These services are jointly commissioned by the Council and CCG, with the 

Council lead commissioning.  Any carer regardless of the care and support or health 

needs can access these services.  Unpaid carers have a pivotal role in preventing 

the need for more formal, long term care and support. 

5.2 Total funding from BCF for Carers Services is £1,112,941 

Page 24



   
 

17 
 

5.3  Support for Carers in Dorset 

5.3.1 A range of contracts are in place to support unpaid carers:  

 Carers Support Dorset offer information, advice and guidance and register the 

Carer – Contract value is £334,000. 

 Rethink, support carers who are caring for someone living with mental health 

illness - – Contract value is £107,355. 

5.3.2 Due to varying definitions, and most likely, that many people who have a caring 

role do not recognise themselves as a carer, figures on the number of carers in 

Dorset varies greatly between sources.  For example, from the 2011 Census there 

were 83,000 carers in Dorset (including BCP Council area), however, local records 

as held by Carers Support Dorset indicate 3,597 at Q3 2021 and Dorset Council 

social care records show 7,689.  Further work is needed to raise awareness of 

carers and is one of the priorities in the forthcoming Carers Strategy, and this will 

include better definition of targets and measures.  The latest Census information is 

expected at the time of writing this report.   

5.3.3 Adult Social Care Outcomes Framework (ASCOF) indicators for Carers are 

focussed on: 

Target Dorset South West England 

The proportion of carers who 
receive self-directed support  

(1C1B) 

98.3% 
Rank10: 

110 

81.7% 87.1% 

The proportion of carers who 
receive a direct payment 
(1C2B) 

15.5% 
Rank: 136 

70.8% 75.3% 

 

5.3.4 Many Authorities have achieved 100% for both indicators, hence Dorset’s 

performance appears low.  However, the proportion of carers who receive self-

directed support is very high and this indicates there is control and choice over how 

they access support. 

5.3.5 Performance around direct payments is not where the Council want it to be and 

this is being addressed. Funding allocated via DPs to carers account for just 

£116,099, 10% of the total budget.  However, this has already been identified as a 

key area for transformation for Dorset, for all care types.  This will improve choice 

and control over how both carers and others eligible for care and support arrange, 

access and fund it. Direct Payments for all care groups is low and workstreams are 

in train to address this. 

 

 

                                                                 
10 The rank is out of the total number of councils, appears to be 151 for 2020-21 but not all councils have submitted for every 

indicator 

Page 25



   
 

18 
 

 

5.4   Carers Case Workers  

 

5.4.1 Of the Carers funding, £240,000 is allocated to provide case workers.  These 

locality-based workers support Carers with the more complex situations, including 

safeguarding concerns and when the home situation is particularly challenging, for 

example where there is conflict within relationships, safeguarding, complexity of care 

or where there is an immediate risk of carer breakdown without intense support.    

Some workers are also based at some hospital sites.  This preventative intervention 

reduces the need for more formal care and support.   

 

5.4.2 All locality and specialist teams undertake Carers Assessments.  The graph 

below shows a decline in Carers Assessments taking place by workers with the 

launch of Carer Support Dorset November 2019 providing improved quality 

information, advice and guidance negating the need for an immediate or 

unnecessary Carers Assessment. The dark blue bars are completed Assessments 

and the light blue reviews. This is being addressed through targeted work. 

 

 

5.3 Additional support for Carers  

5.3.1 The remaining carers funds, £431,586 are allocated across a number of areas, 

examples include:  

 Short Breaks service – this gives Carers time away from their caring 

responsibilities.  There is work to do to develop this offer.  Often this support 

is provided by home care providers, but with recent market pressures some 

carers have not been able to access the support when they need it.  Where 

possible support from voluntary and community sector organisations is 

accessed but further work is needed to improve the support available. 

Page 26



   
 

19 
 

 Carer communications, befriending, engagement and training to provide 

support, guidance and enhance wellbeing are offered via counselling 

services, training opportunities, local magazine (of which 14,300 copies are 

circulated) and an identity and discount card 
 GP practice carers support accreditations scheme to enable carers to access 

services from local access points.  
 

These services offer the flexibility for the carer to access as much, or little, as is 

needed, when it’s needed; this may change as their personal circumstances 

change.  Sometimes, Carers begin with support via registration for the My Carers 

Card and then they choose access further services as needed. 

5.3.2 Work is currently underway to review all carers offers and a longer-term 

Carers Strategy is being developed by Commissioners.  Current work in train with 

carers and pan-Dorset partners is launching with a new ICS (Integrated Care 

System) leaflet advising people who have a caring role to register as a Carer with 

their GP and Lead Carer Organisation (Carer Support Dorset for Dorset Council) 

and CRISP for BCP Council). 

 

6. Reducing Inequality and Prevention at Scale  

 

6.1 Under the Care Act 2014, local authorities have a duty to prevent, reduce or 

delay needs for care and support. Prevention and preventative services form a 

critical foundation in supporting peoples’ Health and Wellbeing, and not only have a 

positive impact on peoples’ independence and quality of life, but there is a significant 

evidence base of the financial benefits through reducing demand on more formal 

health and care interventions.   

 

We are working closely with our voluntary and community sector (VCSE) partners 

and local communities to develop inclusive, community-led offers, which also offer 

great potential to support the future Integrated Care System (ICS), providing a non–

clinical, non-care pathway in Dorset. Whilst BCF monies are not specifically funding 

these activities, there are links between the projects and areas of focus that all 

contribute to the key priorities of both BCF and HWB Strategy; prevention, promoting 

and maintain independence locally, at community  level: Examples of work underway 

include: 

 

 Dorset’s Community Response pilot - a pan Dorset Community Front Door 

enabling residents to easily identify and access support within their local 

communities  

 Developing the micro-provider market in Dorset to provide outcomes-

based approaches for Direct Payment holders, self-funders and direct 

commissioning where suitably accredited, by providing a range of support 

from setup to ongoing development 

Page 27



   
 

20 
 

 A local ‘community front door’ for Weymouth and Portland providing a 

better link between the locality team and resources available within the 

community to support people to remain safe, well and independent 

 Integrated Prevention Services working with individuals to resolve a range 

of issues in relation to housing, health and wellbeing, mental health 

recovery and crisis intervention. This also includes working with Dorset 

County Hospital as part of their discharge team to identify community 

support to support people home from hospital, and a Community Navigator 

pilot, where our Adult Access Team can refer people whose outcomes 

could be met through an intervention outside of a Care and Support 

Assessment. 

 Supporting local businesses to implement a sustainable framework of 

inclusivity and accessibility across Dorset, focusing on reducing isolation 

and supporting inclusion of marginalised groups in Dorset communities 

 Working with local communities to be inclusive of all diverse groups and 

people, reducing isolation and inequalities 

It is anticipated that through the Social Care Reforms more emphasis will be placed 

on the BCF in relation to outcomes from prevention services.  We wait for further 

information on this. 

7. Better Care Fund 2022/23 – Next steps 

 

7.1 There are opportunities to utilise the BCF differently in Dorset; to work differently 

at scale, but to keep impacts and outcomes local. The HWB are asked to identify 

specific measures in addition to those above, which will help demonstrate improved 

outcomes for Dorset.  However, before any re-purposing work can be done we must 

ensure there is sufficient time to review current services, fully understand 

interdependencies and risks with other funding streams.  We must also include time 

to review the learning from other areas.   

7.2 Creating a more joined up approach across health and social care is not just 

about contracts but the whole commissioning cycle; from working with communities 

to establish need, looking at the evidence of what works and working with 

communities to plan how to respond to need, working to target our resources to 

deliver those plans and reviewing and measuring to check the impact. 

 

7.3 We need to make the most of opportunities to work differently as our new 

Integrated Care System is implemented over the coming year and begin to explore 

further joint commissioning opportunities.  The Social Care Reforms are explicit 

about increasing pooled budgets.   The HWB provides an ideal place to discuss this. 

7.4 The November 2022 report will contain more detailed information on both the 

health commissioned schemes funded through the BCF and will provide information 

on how mental health and dementia are supported. 

Page 28



   
 

21 
 

At the time of writing this report, allocations, and guidance for BCF 2022/23 is 

awaited.   

Page 29



This page is intentionally left blank



Health and Wellbeing Board – Forward Plan   
 
Title Description Date of 

Committee 
Meeting 

Agenda 
item time 

Report Author Portfolio 
Holder/s  

Other 
Meetings (CLT, 
SLT, Cabinet 
etc) 

Local Outbreak 
Management Plan 

To provide an update on 
the current position and 
ensure the Board is able 
to fulfil its role in 
accordance with the 
Plan. 
 

30 March 
2022 

10 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 

 

Pharmaceutical 
Needs assessment 
(PNA) 

 

Consultation 30 March 
2022 
 

10 Jane Horne, Consultant 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 

 

ICS update and 
discussion: 

 ICP strategy 
 place-based 

partnerships 

Update on development 
of ICS, and role of the 
Health and Wellbeing 
Board  

30 March 
2022 
 

40 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health + John 
Sellgren, Director of Place 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

HWB Strategy action 
plan stocktake and 
next steps 

 30 March 
2022 
 

20 Paul Iggulden, Consultant 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 
 

 

Anchor Institutions 
update 

Brief update for Board 
members. 

30 March 
2022 
 

10 Paul Iggulden, Consultant 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 

 

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 11



Title Description Date of 
Committee 
Meeting 

Agenda 
item time 

Report Author Portfolio 
Holder/s  

Other 
Meetings (CLT, 
SLT, Cabinet 
etc) 

Better Care Fund Performance and 
Financial Monitoring 
update 

30 March 
2022 

 Lesley Hutchinson, 
Corporate Director for 
Adult Commissioning 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

       

Local Outbreak 
Management Plan 
 

To provide an update on 
the current position and 
ensure the Board is able 
to fulfil its role in 
accordance with the 
Plan. 
 

22 June 
2022 
 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

Review of health in all 
policies 
 

 22 June 
2022 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

Health and Care 
Partnership Forum 
Action Plan 
 

 22 June 
2022 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

Physical Activity 
Strategy Update 
 

Update on the Strategy. 22 June 
2022 

 Rupert Lloyd, Senior 
Health Programme 
Adviser 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

ICS Safe and Legal 
 

 22 June 
2022 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health + John 
Sellgren, Director of 
Place, Matt Prosser 

  

P
age 32



Title Description Date of 
Committee 
Meeting 

Agenda 
item time 

Report Author Portfolio 
Holder/s  

Other 
Meetings (CLT, 
SLT, Cabinet 
etc) 

 
Health & Wellbeing 
Board Strategy Action 
plan stocktake 
 

 22 June 
2022 

 Paul Iggulden, Consultant 
Public Health 

  

       
Local Outbreak 
Management Plan 
 

To provide an update on 
the current position and 
ensure the Board is able 
to fulfil its role in 
accordance with the 
Plan. 
 

14 
September 
2022 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

Anchor Institutions 
update 
 

Brief update for Board 
members. 

14 
September 
2022 
 

 Paul Iggulden, Consultant 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 

 

Pharmaceutical 
Needs Assessment 
(PNA) 
 

Decision 14 
September 
2022 
 

 Jane Horne, Consultant 
Public Health 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 
 

 

System Partnership 
Board  

Ongoing development 
update. 

  Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health + John 
Sellgren, Director of Place 
 

  

       
System Partnership 
Board 

Finalisation 9 
November 
2022 

 Sam Crowe, Director for 
Public Health + John 
Sellgren, Director of Place 

  

P
age 33



Title Description Date of 
Committee 
Meeting 

Agenda 
item time 

Report Author Portfolio 
Holder/s  

Other 
Meetings (CLT, 
SLT, Cabinet 
etc) 

  
       
Stronger 

Neighbourhoods 

Update – link to H&WB 
Strategy 

TBC 

 

30 Diane Evans, Project and 
Policy Officer 
Amanda Davis, Head of 
Locality and Strategy – 
Chesil 
 

Cabinet 
Member for 
Adult Social 
Care and 
Health 

 

 
Areas for consideration in order to achieve a more targeted approach to meet the requirements of the HWB Strategy:- 

Children’s Services 
Home First 
Building Better Lives 
Sustainable Transport 
Social Prescribing 
Cultural Strategy (in relation to H&WB outcomes) 
Further items will arise from the ongoing stocktake of the HWB Strategy Action Plan. Reporting in June. 

P
age 34


	Agenda
	10 Better Care Fund
	Appendix 1 HWB Board - BCF Performance Reporting March 2022

	11 Forward Plan

